Notes To The Financial Statements B 7% 3 & MY &E
s —EE L =+ — B Ik

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1 Principal accounting policies 1 FESFHE
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these A B S BB R TR T 2 B e R
financial statements are set out below: FaE
(a) Basis of preparation (a) #m AL e

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (“HKSA”). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except that, as disclosed in the
accounting policies below, certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and investments in securities are stated at

fair value.

In the current year, the Group adopted the following Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the HKSA
which are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after

1 January 2002:

SSAP 1 (revised) : Presentation of financial statements
SSAP 11 (revised) :  Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) : Cash flow statements

SSAP 34 : Employee benefits

Certain presentation changes have been made upon the adoption
of SSAP 1 (revised) and SSAP 15 (revised). Other changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and the effect of adopting these new

and revised standards is set out in the accounting policies below.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1 Principal accounting policies (continued) 1 FEETEBE (&)
(b) Group accounting (b) 4 H g5t
(i) Consolidation G) %A MBS

72

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are those entities in which the
Group controls the composition of the board of directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more

than half of the issued share capital.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within

the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s
share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill
or goodwill taken to reserves and which was not previously

charged or recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of

subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet the interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

(b) Group accounting (continued)

(ii) Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity. A
joint venture which involves the establishment of a separate
entity in which each venturer has an interest is referred to as

a jointly controlled entity.

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the results of jointly controlled entity for the year,
and the consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share
of the net assets of the jointly controlled entity and goodwill

(net of accumulated amortisation) on acquisition.

(i1i) Associated companies

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary,
in which an equity interest is held for the long-term and

significant influence is exercised in its management.

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the results of associated companies for the year, and
the consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the associated companies and goodwill (net

of accumulated amortisation) on acquisition.
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Notes To The Financial Statements B 7% 3 & MY &E

For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EEZ-_HF+_A=Z+—HILFE
1 Principal accounting policies (continued) 1 FEETEBE (&)
(b) Group accounting (continued) b) £ E g5 (8)
(iv) Translation of foreign currencies (iv) At E

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange LS M T AL 2 32 oy > #4532
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and S B2 ERPTH - RESHA
liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet A e R 2 B W B A
date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance A H 2 BRI H - i
sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt FEAE Z ME SR R A 6 R -

with in the income statement.

The balance sheet of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity B Jag5 2 ]~ e[ 4 o A 2 X W
and associated companies expressed in foreign currencies is BN LA BN 2 A
translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet R T 2 ERYTE >
date whilst the income statement is translated at an average Wi i 3 AL ST 2 FE R AT 5 o il
rate. Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in W AR 2 T 50280 M AF 4 At 5 4
reserves. B AR o
In prior years, the income statement of foreign enterprises TELVEAEE > i S0 4R 2E 2 Wi 4R
was translated at closing rate. This is a change in accounting RUFHHEA ZHERTE - 5
policy, however, the translation of the income statement of B FTBOR 2 S48 > {5 iR I
foreign enterprises in prior years has not been restated as HRABBHHAFEL EEEY
the effect of this change is not material to the current and B K > WO N 1 S A 2
prior years. TE VMR 2 i E 5 -
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)
(c) Fixed assets

(i) Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in
respect of which construction work and development have
been completed and which are held for their investment

potential, any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods
of greater than 20 years are valued at intervals of not more
than three years by independent valuers; in each of the
intervening years valuations are undertaken by professionally
qualified executives of the Group. The valuations are on an
open market value basis related to individual properties and
separate values are not attributed to land and buildings. The
valuations are incorporated in the annual financial
statements. Increases in valuation are credited to the
investment properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in
valuation are first set off against increases on earlier
valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter are debited to
operating profit. Any subsequent increases are credited to

operating profit up to the amount previously debited.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods
of 20 years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion

of the leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant
portion of the revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is released from the investment

properties revaluation reserve to the income statement.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1 Principal accounting policies (continued) 1 FEETEBE (&)
(c) Fixed assets (continued) (c) EEE ()
(ii) Properties under construction (ii) #EPYE
Properties under construction are investments in land and R Y R R LR R 5E

(ii)

buildings on which construction work has not been
completed and which, upon completion, management intend
to hold for investment purposes. These properties are carried
at cost which includes development and construction
expenditure incurred and interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development less any accumulated
impairment losses. On completion, the properties are
transferred to investment properties at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is provided at rates sufficient to write off the
cost of fixed assets less accumulated impairment losses over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The

principal annual rates are as follows:
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Buildings in China Over the remaining term of {1 R H 4 R0 B3 0 1
the lease or 5% whichever ZHF SER 5% » LI
is the higher R

Motor vehicles 12% to 20% R 129%% 20%

Office equipment, furniture ~ 19.2% to 33.33%
and fixtures

Leasehold improvements 20%

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their

expected useful lives to the Group.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

(c) Fixed assets (continued)

(iv) Impairment and gain or loss on sale

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that assets included in properties under
construction and other fixed assets are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is
recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the income statement
except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for
that same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation

decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset other than
investment properties is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and

is recognised in the income statement.

(d) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of

any incentives received from the leasing company are charged to

the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
LT _FEFR

Bt % R MR

WEFE T A= H LA

1

TR EE (&)

(©

(d)

I % B (A)

(iv) i fF B i 85 )
TERFARES A BB RS
BRI LA T Al Al 2 b 3 % LAt
W A T A 2 A
B o QAT PR SR B B
WA > SIS & E 2 ar i ] fE
(B B (Wnsgd /1) R (B0 R A
MR LA 5 2 FE mT i B (o
L 26 30 L s 8 1 W 4 R AR
BB 7 5 7 T R A (S IR
T 98 M 18 AN O % 5 2
(CECR Y 7 YR (e
BUE -

0 E EE (BB RSN
Pl 1 R R RCION
TR R 2 22 I
W R R AR -

458 78 L%

A0 L S 45 A 2 B A
LA &4 LA A R 2 TR
5 - LR L O A 2 e A
B AL A2 T T3 B
R0 7 o 2 e
o -

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
BHEEERLLTF

77



Notes To The Financial Statements B 7% 3 & MY &E

For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_ZE-_FT+HA=1+—HILFE
1 Principal accounting policies (continued) 1 FESTTHE (&)
(e) Intangible assets (e) L& &
(i)  Goodwill/negative goodwill G) mE A pE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition R A WS A R
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets of AR SR B A T S B 2 D
the acquired subsidiary, joint venture or associated company AEEELIBE AT 2 FEE
at the date of acquisition. < BOE -
Goodwill on acquisitions occurring on or after 1 January 2001 o EFE A R E
is included in intangible assets and is amortised using the FE PR 2 W B PR R AT R
straight-line method over its estimated useful life not Sl 7 AN i 3 204F 2 At AT
exceeding 20 years. E DL AR L A -
Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1 January B R—FE—H—HAEESE
2001 was eliminated against reserves. Any impairment arising 2 VST B TR AR OB o
on such goodwill is accounted for in the income statement. A% TR ATRE R - T AR ZAT AT

WA REA R -

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of TR R A A2 ) A T N
the Group’s share of the net assets acquired over the cost of T VLR R S 1A 2 O
acquisition.

For acquisitions after 1 January 2001, negative goodwill is hZEE—AE— ] — H R HELT
presented in the same balance sheet classification as goodwill. Z M - ST B R AR
To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations W2y F7 S — bk - W
of future losses and expenses that are identified in the Group’s VES LT Lig TNy vlbd
plan for the acquisition and can be measured reliably, but TR A Hls 1R % B S0 R T 5
which do not represent identifiable liabilities at the date of MR 2 FEE > ROR A R
acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised B B S AT T ke I R A 2 K T
in the income statement when the future losses and expenses B o ME IS R A AR
are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, not H 2 A w0l AR AT ] 301 R
exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, FURE - DUA B A TR B
is recognised in the income statement over the remaining VERE 2 T EA IR - 5%
weighted average useful life of those assets; negative goodwill R RN Z REST- 24 W] AR
in excess of the fair values of those non-monetary assets is e AR N FE R 5 T % 5
recognised in the income statement immediately. e B AP 2 T R

T RIVIFF A i 4 3R e R
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

(e) Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Goodwill/negative goodwill (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the
unamortised balance of goodwill relating to the entity
disposed of or, for pre 1 January 2001 acquisitions, the related
goodwill written off against reserves to the extent it has not

previously been realised in the income statement.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Cost incurred on
development projects relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products are recognised as an intangible
asset where the technical feasibility and intention of
completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so, costs
are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the asset
that will generate probable future economic benefits. Such
development costs are recognised as an asset and amortised
over the expected useful life to the Group. Development costs

that do not meet the above criteria are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of any intangible asset, including goodwill previously
written off against reserves, is assessed and written down

immediately to its recoverable amount.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

(h)

Investments in equity securities

Investments which are held for non-trading purpose are stated at
fair value at the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of
individual securities are credited or debited to the investment
revaluation reserve until the security is sold, or is determined to
be impaired. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss
representing the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant security, together with any
surplus/deficit transferred from the investment revaluation reserve,

is dealt with in the income statement.

Where there is objective evidence that individual investments are
impaired the cumulative loss recorded in the revaluation reserve

is taken to the income statement.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total development
costs, including capitalised borrowing costs, attributable to unsold
units. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds, or management estimates based on prevailing
market conditions, less all estimated costs to completion and

selling expenses.

Properties under development
Properties under development for sale are classified under current

assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of properties under development comprises costs of
acquisition to the Group, development costs, borrowing costs and
other direct costs attributable to the development. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to anticipated sales proceeds, or
management estimates based on prevailing market conditions, less

all estimated costs to completion and selling expenses.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

(k)

M

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales

proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Trade debtors
Provision is made against trade debtors to the extent they are
considered to be doubtful. Trade debtors in the balance sheet are

stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks

and bank overdrafts.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement

is virtually certain.

(m) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Retirement benefit costs
The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme which is available to all relevant employees.
Contributions to the scheme by the Group and employees

are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the

scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of

the Group in an independently administered fund.

(n) Contingent liabilities

(0)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in
respect of timing differences between profit as computed for
taxation purposes and profit as stated in the financial statements
to the extent that a liability or an asset is expected to be payable or

recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Bt % R MR

WEFE T A= H LA

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

FTESHEE (H&)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued) 1

(p) Revenue recognition (p)

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised on the
completion of transactions. When properties under development
for sale are pre-sold prior to completion, income is recognised on
the execution of a binding sales agreement or when the relevant
building occupation permit is issued by the relevant authority,
whichever is the later. Payments received prior to this stage are

recorded as deposits received and included in current liabilities.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has

passed.

Operating lease rental income and license income is recognised

on a straight-line basis.

Revenue from the provision of services comprises course fee
income and systems integration service income. Course fee income
is recognised on an accrual basis. Unearned course fee income is
treated as revenue received in advance. Systems integration service

income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Property management fee income is recognised when the services

are rendered.

Sale of trading securities is recognised on trade day or contract

date basis, where appropriate.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking
into account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest

rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment

is established.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(q) Borrowing costs

(r)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale

are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in

the year in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as the
primary reporting format and geographical as the secondary

reporting format.

Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets, investment
properties, intangible assets, properties held for sale and under
development, receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude corporate borrowings.
Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed assets (note 12)
and intangible assets (note 13), including additions resulting from

acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on
the country in which the customer is located. Total assets and

capital expenditure are where the assets are located.

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

Turnover, revenues and segment information
The Group is principally engaged in property development, investment

and management, business parks development and management,

Bt % R MR

WEFE T A= H LA

2

R KERSBER
AEHEER R R - G REA
PSR 2 DR MR - AR R o

infocomm technology investment. Revenues recognised during the year FERNRHER WM
are as follows:
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (Lo W o0 A% BEA)
Turnover BEE
Sales of properties 413,013 361,095 B3
Sales of goods 8,526 - &
Gross rental income 14,488 11,663 TH 45 i A #83H
Rendering of services 6,235 - 2 14t i B
Property management fee 1,036 1,285 WEEHE
Sales of trading securities 133 9,005 HEHEEES
443,431 383,048
Other revenues FoAtbol 45
Realised gain on sales of non-trading HEFEEHE 2
securities 422 12,059 C % Bk 4
Interest income 3,261 2,456 FE WA
Dividend income from listed securities 385 1,059 LW HE BB A
Others 3,074 1,963 H Aty
7,142 17,537
Total revenues 450,573 400,585 Al 45

Primary reporting format — business segments
The Group is organised into four main business segments:
Property — development, investment and
management of properties

Business park — development and management of

business parks

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

2 Turnover, revenues and segment information
(continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)
Infocomm technology — investment in info-communications
and education projects, as well as
provision of technology services
infrastructure investment and

Other operations -

securities investment

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group’s four business segments operate in two main geographical
areas:

Hong Kong —  property investment, development
and management, investment in
info-communications and education
projects, provision of technology
services, as well as securities
investment

China —  property investment, development
and management, development and
management of business parks,
investment in info-communications
and education projects, provision of
technology services, as well as

infrastructure investment

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

2 Turnover, revenues and segment information 2 EXFE -WakoBEH
; 1

(continued) (&)

Primary reporting format — business segments FHEKHEEKX — EH W

2002 ZERE AR

Business  Infocomm Other
Property park technology operations Corporate Eliminations  Group
& i 3

(HK$000) nE BER MH 2% R HE AEE (Ao ¥ T T fy B Ar)

Turnover R
External 41619 12,338 14761 133 - - S
Inter-segment - 270 9 - - (279) - 5 B

416,199 12,608 14,770 133 - (279) 443431

Segment results (4055) 6,283 (40,157) (166)  (44,370) - (82465) g1 2

Finance costs (21,991) gt g Okl

Non-operating i RS e
provisions made (142,301) E ) 3 5

Share of results of JRE A B 7 2 A
associated E¥
companies (26,065) - (290) - - - (26,35)

Share of results of a JRE Ak 3 ] £ il
jointly controlled [
entity - - - (3,909) - - (3,909)

Loss before taxation (277,021) % i 1 e 4R

Taxation (780) B IH

Loss after taxation (277,801) i i 1% Mg 48

Minority interests 10,782 D B RRE A

Loss attributable to T B A
shareholders (267,019) J&5 48

Segmentassels 935,821 96648 160,864 3085 186,078 - 205,19 5y & e

Interests in associated Wk & 2w
companies 56,814 - - - - - 56814 HE 2

Interest in a jointly e [ 1] 4 2
controlled entity - - - 145286 - - 14586 HE 5

Total assets 2,454,296 A

Segment liabilities 359,267 120,141 23452 9678 391,524 - 904062 43 A fE

Total liabilties 904,062 ME R

Capital expenditure 1,357 7,968 45494 - 47 - 556 B AR B S

Depreciation 379 750 4,686 - 2,102 - 7917 or e

Other non-cash HoAth 3 31 &
expenses 67,366 107,492 36,829 - 800 - 212487 B

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

2 Turnover, revenues and segment information

Bt 7% R & MR

WEFE T A= B

BEE - RERDBER

- = —
(continued) (&)
Primary reporting format — business segments FEHREER — EHESH
2001 —EEF A

Business  Infocomm Other
Property park  technology  operations  Corporate Eliminations Group
g it t¥

(HK$000) N% HEE B £% R % He  AKE (Do ¥ F o0 f B AL

Turnover X
External 367,156 6,887 - 9,005 - - 383048 Hh B
Inter-segment - - - - - - - iz

367,156 6,887 - 9,005 - - 383,048

Segment results (253407)  (L151) (2,180) 10,004 (55,000) - (30L734) 2 A

Finance costs (41,613) s 2 H

Non-operating W AR TS
provisions made (17,245) T th $5 A

Share of results of JRE Ak Bt % 2 W)
associated ¥4
companies (39,962) - (1,871) - - - (41,833)

Share of results of a JE A A ] 2
jointly controlled & FEFEH
entity - - - (436) - - (456)

Loss before taxation (402,881) B Bt il e 18

Taxation (846) i IH

Loss after taxation (403,727) B Bl 1% e 18

Minority interests 7,074 D B R A

Loss attributable J SR Al
to shareholders (396,653) i 48

Segment assets 1,296,166 828,882 73 12,966 56,147 - 2194234 4 B g\: E

Interests in associated Wt 7 2\ )
companies 86,880 - 8,726 - - - 95606 HE 45

Interest in a jointly Ik RS
controlled entity - - - 0T - - 150773 HE 3

Total assets 2,440,613 O E

Segmentliabilities 621,85 124,678 20815 5868 40583 - 1219018 g3 T A

Total liabilties 1,219,018 ME R

Capital expenditure 7,911 68,569 - - 1960 - M N3

Depreciation 1,09 625 18 - 1,135 - 2,868 bR

Other non-cash oAt 3 B 4
expenses 236,230 - 7,194 17,526 671 - 261,621 B %

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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Notes To The Financial Statements B 7% 3 & MY &E

For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EZ-_HF+ A=+ —HILFE
2 Turnover, revenues and segment information 2 EXFE -WakoBEH
(continued) (&)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments KRE®REL R — w5 E
2002 “EEFE
Operating Total Capital
Turnover loss assets expenditure
(In HK$°000) BER REBE HEE B4XHX (LA e T oe J B Ar)
Hong Kong 417,032 (44,473) 474,285 3,446 ik
China 26,399 (37,992) 1,980,011 51,800 h
443,431 (82,465) 2,454,296 55,246
2001 —EE
Operating Total Capital
Turnover loss assets  expenditure
(In HK$°000) EEE REFB BEE EXBX (LA ¥ T o0 J B A7)
Hong Kong 376,161 (295467) 884,663 2,829 = i
China 6,887 (6:267) 1,555,950 75,611 i
383,048 (301,734) 2,440,613 78,440
3 Provisions made for operations 3 MKEEBMELRE
(In HK$’000) 2002 2001 (DL W T 58 5 58 f7)
Provisions made in relation to: LT I H P B
Property projects 29,390 235,682 L E 3=
Long-term investment AT IF 2
in equity securities - 7,475 Ry
Fixed assets 22,337 - & E B E
Inventories 3,731 - ety
Doubtful debts 3,327 236 W HE
58,785 243,393
ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

4 Operating loss 4 REFE

Operating loss is stated after crediting and charging the following:

HEEBEHRCFHARNBK NIIER

(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (L3t W T 0 2 B )
Crediting ELIPN
Rental income from TH & A
— investment properties —HEYE
Gross income 12,338 6,887 e A AR
Less: direct outgoings (1,378) (1,237) o HEE A
10,960 5,650
— properties held for sale and — fR g KBRS
under development 2,150 4,776 L/ES
Realisation of negative goodwill 6,378 - £ R A B
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 1,136 - B T E B E 2 A
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 868 Rl AP
Charging &R
Depreciation of fixed assets 9,810 3,404 I T
Less: amounts capitalised to properties o BERESYEER
under construction (51) (192) 2 B
amounts capitalised to properties BIEE R EE A
under development (1,842) (344) 2 B
7,917 2,868
Unrealised holding loss on non-trading FAFREHRBERZ
securities 705 - 5B
Amortisation of goodwill 5,390 - 7 B 4
Amortisation of development costs 4,576 - BH B A A 8 5
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 983 A w2 1R
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 730 - B B A A 2 R
Operating lease rentals in respect of land o ReME T 2 RE R
and buildings 4,359 5,184 X
Auditors’ remuneration A% BT
— current year 1,367 928 — AR
— (over)/underprovision for — DLEEAEE GER)
previous years (146) 107 e gip Ny
Staff costs B T A
(including directors’ remuneration) 50,735 38,182 (A FME)
Retirement benefit costs 903 740 B AR AR B A

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

Finance costs

Notes To The Financial Statements

Bt % R MR

WEFE T A= H LA

BB A

(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DA ¥t T o0 2% B 07)
Interest on bank and other borrowings R I AT TR A TR R R 2 SRAT M H A

wholly repayable within five years 26,077 54,883 KR S
Other borrowing costs 5,017 2,447 HoAt 5 & 2
Total borrowing costs incurred 31,094 57,330 FE A 2 A AR
Less: amounts capitalised to properties o BAEEERYERAZ

under construction (2,317) (3,543) B
amounts capitalised to properties BEEREDYENAZ
under development (6,786) (12,174) B
Total borrowing costs capitalised (9,103) (15,717) BIEEAZ & A B
21,991 41,613

Non-operating provisions made MIEREERELRE
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DA HE % T 50 B B 07)
Provisions made for impairment R FIE B 2 W

in values of: E i 8

Goodwill arising on acquisition of 5 e — [ B Ja 2 W E A

a subsidiary (Note) 106,694 - 2O (K )

Interest in a jointly controlled entity - 17,245 S ] #22 ] A 2 R R
Provision for property project due to WEEHFS A 2 R

contract frustration 24,700 - i A 2z A
Provision for a contractual claim 10,907 - AR RM B

142,301 17,245
Note: [T

This represents the goodwill previously written off against reserves prior to 1 January

2001. According to the Group’s accounting policies as set out in Note 1 (), the amount

was written off to the income statement due to impairment.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (2001:
16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement

Bt 7% R & MR

WE BT = b —H L

WA

v ) A5 80 T i BEAS 4R JBE A & BB It
FRBL F 16% (ZFF —4F © 16%) & i
o WG AN R Z BLER o BN g B4 A
T R ik ) A A B2 R SE BT b IR 2
BATBL R FHH -

TE &7 AW R P S8 Z BRI

represents:

(In HK$’000) 2002 2001 (Lo ¥ F o0 f B AL
Hong Kong profits tax 780 13 7 U 15 B
Overseas taxation - 833 3 A B IH

780 846

There was no material unprovided deferred taxation for the year.

Loss attributable to shareholders

The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$155,802,000 (2001:
HK$328,766,000).

Loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the Group’s loss

attributable to shareholders of HK$267,019,000 (2001: HK$396,653,000).

The basic loss per share is based on the weighted average of
2,365,686,867 (2001: 1,667,935,487) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

Diluted loss per share is not shown as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares.

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

10 Retirement benefit costs

Forfeited contributions totalling HK$672,000 (2001: HK$481,000) were

utilised during the year to reduce future contributions.

Contributions totalling HK$252,000 (2001: HK$169,000) were payable

to the fund at the year end and are included in creditors and accruals.

11 Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors of the

Company during the year are as follows:

Bt % R MR

WEFE T A= H LA

10 R AKEF & A&

11

Wl 2 B3k & 3L % 672,00000 (. FF—
4 ik 481,0007T) TR AE K ET > LA
ik H %% 2 i3k -

TN AE &5 B A T 4 2 I Ak A S ik
#252,0000C (—FE—4F : #5%169,00070) >
S 51 7 I A R B R M FT IR TE A o

ESKEREBEAEMSE
(a) E=HME

R AR 2 T i) SO A 2 I < AR
mr

(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DAt W T o0 2% BT
Fees 510 602 4
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 9,487 8,800 4~ A M H At 4R A
Contributions to retirement FER N AR ]
benefit schemes 330 210 Z K
10,327 9,612

Directors’ fees disclosed above include HK$390,000 (2001:

HK$119,000) paid to independent non-executive directors.

b P R 2 E A 4 S S
AT B S AT 2 BT % 390,0000C
(ZFE—4F  #¥119,00000) -

The emoluments of the directors fell within the following bands: XA TEFZMEANWT

Number of directors

EEAH

Emolument bands 2002 2001 Ml 4 48 7l
Nil - HK$1,000,000 14 17 E F i % 1,000,0007C
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 2 5 ¥ 1,000,0017T £ #5 5 1,500,0007C
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1 3 s % 2,000,0017C = # ¥ 2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 - W #2,500,0017C & # ¥ 3,000,00070
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 - 5 ¥ 3,000,0017T £ i 5 3,500,0007C
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

11 Directors’ and senior management’s MEEREREEAERNS
emoluments (continued) (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) T4 fe v A L

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2001: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

emoluments payable to the remaining two (2001: two) highest

AR A SR T IR T 4 M &
WIE=4 (CFF 4 =) #HE
N AR 0 @ NN i
(ZFE A W) e A £

paid individuals during the year are as follows: B HTn T
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (LA e - oe J B A7)
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 3,261 3,346 Brdr o~ AN A At 4E R
Contributions to retirement AR AE R &
benefit schemes 76 122 1 3K
3,337 3,468
The emoluments fell within the following bands: 7= 7 1 N
Number of directors
EEAY
Emolument bands 2002 2001 P 4 48 7
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 2 5 ¥ 1,500,0017T £ 5 ¥ 2,000,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

12 BEEEE

12 Fixed assets

Group N Y
Buildings in
China
under Properties
Tnvestment  medium-term Motor Officc ~ Fumnitwre  Leaschold under
properties lease vehicles  equipment  and fixtures improvements  construction Total
RE 9EZHE #2E  BAER B BE4
(InHKS 00 w% RMET  AE BE EE 9%EE w% #E (Ao ¥ T T fy B Ar)
Cost or valuation i 2’.( B 5% ’fE iz
At January 2002 160,128 16,988 5559 453 10% 438 6LI00 79388 NZEEHE—~H—H
Exchange difference - - ] - 2 2 - (6) [ifE f‘ﬁ % %E
Acquistion ofsubsidares (Note 27(5) - AN 'Y B Y " SRV S o Wi B B B 2 | (B 5% 27(b))
Additons - 546 94 2158 80 %l 66 1B b N
Revaluation deficit (20,605) - - - - - - (20,605) ®H 'ﬁji E% Fai
Disposls - A (73 o) . - ) &
Impeirmentlos . o e s (1% - ) VERIEN
At31 December 2002 95 175 58 M4 3354 wn 6T 8786 R-BE-_F+=-A=+—H
Accumulated depreciation and £ % r g K&
impairment oAIEN
At January 2002 - 204 2605 2219 436 191 - 9105 AN _EE_F—H—H
Acquision of subsidires (Note 27b)) - - WM 96 26 S Wi B B Jg 2 |1 (B 5 27(b))
Charge for the year Y IR Y L T AAE B 8
Disposls - - () (s01) ) . T &
Impeirmentlos . - %) (1,045) (314) (789) - ) VERIEN
At31 December 2002 - 4 W e 239 6391 VA R-BE-_F+=-A=+—H
Net book value ﬁ§ E @; {E
A3 December 2002 B B %6 16 W5 2 6w T R-ZZEZE-_+=ZA=+—H
At31 December 201 16018 1475 2934 2354 660 W0 QLT T Ao EE—F+_HA=Z+—H
The analyss of cost or valuation of the above assets is s follows: b 2 BUASE A AR
Atcost - 5480 34 335 9N 8T 678 e A
Atprofesonalvluation - 202 139523 - - - - - - R ZEAH — —FF 4
B A 548 344 3354 9N 8T SITAR

The Group’s interest in investment properties is situated in China under

medium term lease.

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2002 on the basis

of their open market value by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an

independent qualified valuer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 WE-XEX-"F+-_A=Z+—-HLFE

12 Fixed assets (continued) 12 BIE&E (&)
At 31 December 2002, no investment properties (2001: HK$89,454,000) AERZFEF A= —H o ER
were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the Group. ) S T A AR SR T R 2 SR AT B R A

(R4 %%89,454,0007‘5) °

At 31 December 2002, total borrowing costs of HK$2,317,000 (2001: WoEEHE++A=+—H  #AEEE
HK$3,543,000) were capitalised to properties under construction. H152,317,0007C (—FF—4 - #5¥3,543,000
JC) ZAE B B RS A o

. PN
13 Intangible assets 13 BFEEE
Group
rE
Negative Development
Goodwill goodwill costs Total
(In HK$’000) (R BHE RERXK k] (LAt B -0 2 B 47)
Net book value at 1 January 2002 - - - - A FFE AFE—H — H MR E
Acquisition of subsidiaries e B BAF R N T
(Note 27(b)) 117,631 (6,378) 4,411 115,664 (B 3E27(b))
Additions - - 165 165 B
Amortisation (5,390) - (4,576) (9,966) 84
Realisation - 6,378 - 6,378 Y
Net book value at W —_FE+H=+—H
31 December 2002 112,241 - - 112,241 B T 93 (E
At 31 December 2002 WNoEZEFE+HA=+—H
Cost 117,631 (6,378) 68,555 179,808 A
Accumulated amortisation B B R
and impairment loss (5,390) - (68,555) (73,945) R
Realisation - 6,378 - 6,378 55 75
112,241 - - 112,241
At 31 December 2001 AZEE—FE+T_H=+—H
Cost - - 63,979 63,979 A
Accumulated amortisation 2T 8 S
and impairment loss - - (63,979) (63,979) &5 48
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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13 BEEE (&)
BT AT A S

13 Intangible assets (continued)
(a) In May 2002 the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of (a)

CyberCity Investments Limited (“CCI”) which is principally
engaged in infocomm technology business. The consideration of
HK$140,400,000 (equivalent to approximately US$18 million) was
satisfied by way of allotment and issue of 334,285,714 ordinary
shares of HK42 cents per share.

The consideration is subject to an upward adjustment of
HK$14,973,000 (equivalent to approximately US$1,920,000)
pursuant to the terms of a put options scheme (“Campusall Put
Options”) dated 26 September 2000 between CCI and nine former
shareholders of CampusAll Limited (“Put Options Holders”), a
subsidiary of CCI, under which the latter has an option to require
CCI to purchase their respective shareholdings in another
subsidiary of CCI. Prior to the completion of the acquisition, one
of the Put Options Holders exercised its options for US$550,000.
Consideration for exercising the remaining Campusall Put Options
in full amounted to HK$10,683,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$1,370,000).

During the year, the Group acquired the remaining Campusall
Put Options at a total consideration of HK$8,214,000. Given the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of CCI at the date of the
acquisition was HK$41,078,000, the resulting goodwill was
adjusted to HK$115,947,000 and will be amortised on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life in accordance with the

Group’s accounting policy.

As a result of the above acquisition, the Group’s loss for the year
has been increased by HK$28,770,000 and the Group’s net assets

were decreased accordingly.

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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CyberCity Investments Limited ([ CCIJ)
2R EITIRA - CCIEERFE
afl Bk 275 o QA % Ut 140,400,000
JG (FA %5 i %9 18,000,0003% 78) » B i5
A T 3 B 8 AT 334,285,714 45 B AR 18
W a2l 2 IR S AT e

2 #% CCIEL CampusAll Limited (CCLZ
Bt JB 28 mD) Ju 44 Hi IR (58 7k #A RE
FAEAND R ZFERENA AR
H &1 2 R BIRETH 8 (T Campusall
RIEIIRE]) 2R AU AT R
T W 14,973,0007C (FH %5 7% %9 1,920,000
FI0) o MPECampusal i8I HIHE » 7R
T RE R N RE SR CCIil B
SF R CCLn — B B 2 W 2 BEHE o AE
S MR R - H P — 44 BB I HE
B NATHEIIRE > 5% 5 550,00032
JG o & BT i R T Campusallid it 47
HE 2 ACAE 2595 #10,683,0000T (445 4
#11,370,0003 JC) °

R AR LA AR
¥ 8,214,000 U i Campusall ¥ A 2 78
THARE SR o AU B cer ml
PV RE 2 (B 2 Wk 141,078,000
JG > 1P R R 2 s 0 115,947,00000
Bl g AR R AL 1 2 & R B H
A 1T F AT 0 N i AR RS

A 45 [ 4F T B S 18 TR I g i i 4
Jin i 15 28,770,0007T > AN 4E [ 1 & E
I AH HE W D o

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
BHEEERLLTF
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13 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) In September 2002 the Group acquired 12% of the registered
capital in Vision Century Real Estate Development (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd. (formerly known as Dalian Wanguo Amenity Centre
Company Limited), a then 88% subsidiary of the Group at a total
consideration of approximately HK$8,371,000. The resulting
goodwill will be amortised on a straight-line basis over its

estimated useful life in accordance with the Group’s accounting

policy.

(c) Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition
upon the 35% increase in shareholdings in Beijing Golden Voyage
Electronic Technology Co., Ltd., a then 50% associated company
of the Group.

14 Interests in subsidiaries

Bt 7% R & MR

WEFE T A= B

13 B & E (&)

(b) WEE AR > ALE LA
15 % % 5 8,371,0007C W B 2R 5 b
7 B () A B2 W) (Al K
B R D BR A R R E A
Z12% o FAA F T3 A B B R 2 88%
B 2N ) o T EE AR 2 WS & AR TR
AR B 2 g 5 BOR DB 1k AE H AR
CiaCIRU RS SR 3

() BMEMALEMMFLTSEME
T BT AT B AT A A (A AR I IR
14 50966 2 2 7)) 359% M HE 43 4k I i
WER G AP E SRR A Z
R o

14 B QA EE

Company
¥ NN

(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DA s T 7T 4 ¥ 00)
Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,930,335 2,645,135 JRE i B B 2\ K E
Less: provision (1,334,552)  (1,177,590) o A

1,595,783 1,467,545
Amounts due to subsidiaries (129,073) (598) JRE ASF BfF g 2 ] K IE

1,466,710 1,466,947

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF
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14 M B2 RERE ()

BRI RE WIS AT R A
FoAS A2 EEMEA K
A1 s RE IS S S 5 LA

14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2002 (a)
which were incorporated and are operating in Hong Kong except

otherwise stated are as follows:

BRI
Proportion of
nominal value
Particulars of issued share capital of issued ordinary
Number of Parvalue  share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares pershare capital held by the Group  Principal activities
AEBREER
ERTREER BRAEER/
WEBARER EBERRE BREME AMEREELH FTEEH
Directly held by the Company:
HERALARE
Vision Century Secretaries Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Secretarial and nominee services
R A A IR LAV UE VU IN T/
Indirectly held by the Company:
flfk AL A
Beijing Gang Lu Real Estate - U8$11,200,000 65%  Property development in
Development Co., Ltd. (i) (iv)(vii) (registered capital) China
AL ot A 7 B AT R R () i) (o) 11,200,000 7T i ) R
(FLfi 4%
Beijing Golden Voyage Electronic - HK$18,000,000 85%  Development and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. (i) (iv)(v) (registered capital) education software
A 3 R T B A IR ETAE 2 FG) () (v) ¥ 1 18,000,0007C SR S
(FEM & A)
Best Keeping Resources Limited 2 HK$!1 100%  Property and golf club
RARE AR 7] L APH membership holding
BEWELRTRRGGH

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Bt 7% R & MR

WEFE T A= B

14 fH B2 R = (&)

Proportion of
nominal value
Particulars of issued share capital of issued ordinary
Number of Parvalue  share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares pershare capital held by the Group  Principal activities
rEEFRER
BERTRAES BRTEER/
WELAREH LERRE ERAE SMEXEELS FTEXE
Billion Property Limited (ii) 1 Us$1 100%  Investment holding
1% 78 BEER
Campusall Company Limited (i) (iv) 10,000 HKS$1 97.34%  Investment holding
LAV BEER
CC-Edu Holdings Limited (ii) 112,504 US$0.1 60.37%  Investment holding
0.1% 7T BEER
Century Nova Cyber Technology (Shenzhen) - RMB10,000,000 90%  Computer networking services
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shenzhen (registered capital) TR Ak s
CyberCity E-Commerce Co., Ltd.) (i) (iv)(V) B 10,000,000 7T
AR BWEA A RA R (MBS EE (FE & A4
EFRB (I AR ()
Com.Com Learning Technology (Shenzhen) - US$300,000 60.37%  English training services
Co., Ltd. (i) (iv)(v) (registered capital) Pt e
HERE B A5 B BT (R A7 PR 22 7 (1) () (v) 300,000% 7T
(FEM & A)
Cursor Media IT (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (i) (iv)(v) - US$1,500,000 60.37%  Sales of educational software and
BEZREREHEM (I ARAFG) (v)(v) (registered capital) web-based education services
1,500,000% 7 HELFWMN R
(REMI 5 4¢) R4 2 2R
CyberCity Cursor Media Co. Ltd (i)(iv)(v) - RMB5,000,000 60.37%  Development of education
B BT EID A RA 7 @) (registered capital) hardware and software/
A B #5,000,0007C consultancy services
(FLf & 4% TG 94
A P AR

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF

100

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
T _FFHK



Notes To The Financial Statements B 7% 3 & MY &E

For the year ended 31 December 2002 wE - FEFHF+_A=+—HILEE
14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued) 14 B AR (&)
Proportion of
nominal value
Particulars of issued share capital of issued ordinary
Number of Parvalue  share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares pershare capital held by the Group  Principal activities
rEEfRE
BRTRAES BRAEER/
WEARER EERBREH BREE ZMEXEELN FEEH
CyberCity Investments Limited (ii) 40,000,000 US80.01 100%  Investment holding
0.013% 7 HE R
CyberCity Investments (SZ) Limited (i) (iv)(v) - US$250,000 100%  Business consulting services
FABEEH (I HRAFA) (v)(v) (registered capital) EEEEE
250,000 7
(FEM & A)
E-Commerce Technology Limited (i) 1 US§$1 100%  Investment holding
E BE R
Glory Honour Development Limited 10,000 HK$1 100%  Property development
B REARA A LAV ES 3
Great Project Property Limited 100 HK$1 65%  Investment holding
KA A IR 7 T HEHER
Ideal Investment Holdings Limited (ii) 50,000 US$1 100%  Investment holding
EH BE R
Limbo Enterprises Limited (ii) 1 US$1 100%  Property development
1% UES 3
Million Wealth Development Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property development
HRHERARA A LBV ES 3
New Digital Associates Limited (ii) 14,286 US$1 85%  Investment holding
EH BE R
Nova Network Holdings Limited (iii) 25,000,000 US$0.25 90%  Computer networking services
025% 7T Y EES S
Nova Network Limited 2 HKS$1 90%  Computer networking services
i B e BN 4 RH
ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE - FEFF+_A=t+—HILEE
14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued) 14 MEBELTERE (F)
Proportion of
nominal value
Particulars of issued share capital of issued ordinary
Number of Parvalue  share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares pershare capital held by the Group  Principal activities
rEEfRE
BRITREER BROZER/
WEAEE® EERRE BREE dMEXAEELA TEXK
Jubilee Success Limited (ii) 1 Us$1 90%  Investment holding
1% BEER
Maxwin Holdings Limited 100 US$1 100%  Investment holding
S B E I
Prosper Advance Investments Limited 2 HKS$1 100%  Property development
ERREARRAH ER AV VES §
Readworld.com Corporation (iii) 1,000,000 US$0.1 97.34%  Investment holding
01T BEER
Rich Ocean Development Limited 10,000 HK$1 100%  Property development
wi g RARA A XAV ESEE
Tenways Investments Limited (i) 1 US$1 100%  Investment holding
1ET RE MR
The 8th Network Corporation (iii) 2 US$1 100%  Investment holding
1%L BEER
The 8th Network Corp. (HK) Limited 2 HKS$1 100%  Business consulting services
XAV T 3 I D
8th Network China Co Ltd. (i) (iv)(v) - US$6,500,000 97.34%  Consultancy and translation service
HEEREWARA AW ) (registered capital) 1) J 5 e
6,500,000% T¢
(RE & 4
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Bt % R MR

WEFE T A= H LA

14 HH B2 R = (&)

Proportion of
nominal value
Particulars of issued share capital of issued ordinary
Number of Parvalue  share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares pershare capital held by the Group  Principal activities
rEBRRE
ERTRAEH BRITEER/
WEARAER LERKRH BREE SAMERAEELS FEER
VCC iCapital Limited (ii) 2 US$1 100%  Investment holding
IESH b sedls
Victory Great Investment Limited 2 HKS$1 100%  Property development
AR BUE AR A W e ES 3
Vision Business Park (TH) Limited (ii) 1 US$1 100%  Investment holding
1% BE R
Vision Business Park Marketing Services Limited (ii) 1 US$1 100%  Marketing services
3 1 57 4t e
Vision Century Administration Limited 500,000 HKS$1 100%  Management consultancy services
e 1 e BT R
Vision Century Capital Limited 2 HKS$1 100%  Group financing
AT BB AR e W e SHME
Vision Century Estate Agents Limited 2 HKS$1 100%  Real estate agency
B AR A R R e e F o 7 A AL
Vision Century Investments (Dalian) Limited 2 HKS$1 100%  Investment holding
B BCE CKH) AIRA o AV BE R
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14 H B2 B = (&)

14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of issued share capital

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued ordinary

Number of Parvalue  share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares pershare  capital held by the Group  Principal activities
rEEfEE
BRITREER BROZER/
WEBLAREE EERRE BREE dMEXAEELA TEXK
Vision Century Property Consultancy 1 US§1 100%  Property consultancy services
Services Limited (ii) IEH TR T AR
Vision Century Property Management Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property management
B EERARAR XAV WEER
Vision Century Real Estate Development - U$$10,000,000 100%  Property development in
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Dalian (registered capital) China
Wanguo Amenity Centre Company Limited) (i) (iv)(v) 10,000,000 F 7T P
TR 7 o B ORI IR A (REM %4
(BT 0 I 0 R D) (1) (iw)(v)
Vision Huaqing (Beijing) Development Co., Ltd. (i) (iv) - RMB130,000,000 60%  Business park development in
BoHEE (L) BEBEARAF ()v) (registered capital) China
B 130,000,000 GRS E 9
(RE & 4
Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park Co., Ltd. (i) (iv) (vi) - RMB100,000,000 95%  Business park development in
TR IR B A R FG) (v)(v) (registered capital) China
A B 100,000,000 GELEL R 9
(REH & A)
Wide Best Development Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property development
REERARA A XAV LIES i

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EZ-_HF+ A=+ —HILFE
14 Interests in subsidiaries (continued) 14 B R B E=E (&)
Notes: B 5E
(i)  Registered and with place of business in China @) AR R
(ii)  Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (i) % JE & Lo Bk Mk
(iii) Incorporated in the Cayman Islands (iii) 7B = B B 5 AR S
(iv) Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (iv) B R A B R P
(v)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprise (v) HhFmERE
(vi) Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise i) HHAEELEEME
(vii) Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise (vii) PAGIEGE %
15 Interests in associated companies 15 Bf&E AR &
Group A 4R
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (LA s % o0 & B 00)
Share of net liabilities (200,382)  (136,872) JEE At A v
Capital reserve on acquisition of Wi S — ] B v )
an associated company - (28,917) Z G A A

(200,382) (165,789)

Amounts due from AE Wi it 7 )
associated companies 257,196 261,395 KIH
56,814 95,606
Investment at cost g A
Unlisted shares 156 40,156 JE b T
(a) The Group’s share of results of associated companies includes a (a) A% SR LA A 060 8 2 ) SE AT B9 7
provision of HK$34,802,000 (2001: HK$48,000,000) representing 34,802,00070 ( =% % — 4 i
the Group’s share of deficit on revaluation of an investment 148,000,0007T) 2 - 15 2 AL
property held by an associated company. HE A — [ BB ] IO A A ) 3
Al s Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EEZ-_HF+_A=Z+—HILFE
15 Interests in associated companies (continued) 15 Bt & N Rl &= ()
(b) Particulars of the principal associated companies as at 31 (b) BRAFIIGEHISN - A —FE A
December 2002 which were incorporated and are operating in AZt—HZEEBEAREESR
Hong Kong except otherwise stated are as follows: T RE M LT B KRB s > AT B &
BHR

Proportion of nominal value of

Name of associated companies issued ordinary share capital
indirectly held by the Company held by the Group Principal activities
BEAAQXARFAZ KEBAGE®T
BEAREHE EEREE LA TEXE
Fortune Top Properties Limited 40.002% Property investment
B A RAFE XS
Longshine Assets Limited (i) (ii) 40.002% Investment holding
P B
Poly-Strong Development Limited 50% Property trading
W RA R A A YIEEE
Notes: ¥f 2 -
(i)  Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (1) B R L B S G AR S
(ii) Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (i) FF H S S K A T RS T A A%
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 WE-XEX - F+ A=+ -HILFE
15 Interests in associated companies (continued) 156 Bt & N el (&)
(c) Extracts of financial information of a significant associated ()  — M T ZHHE 4 Wl 2 B 5 6 Rt B
company are set out as follows: mTF
Unaudited Unaudited
REER P £33
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DA ¥ T T 2y B L)
Operating results REXE
Turnover 25,394 28,614 e
Loss attributable to shareholders (85,259) (100,098) T SR A s 1R
Financial position B 351 R
Investment property 193,000 280,000 Ea<g7/E
Current assets 6,286 10,754 B G E
Current liabilities (10,910) (26,534) b /==
Shareholders’ loans (642,958) (652,958) A K
Other non-current liabilities (47,500) (48,000) HoA JE 3 B A AE
Shareholders’ deficit (502,082) (436,738) B s 4
ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 WE-XEX-"F+-_A=Z+—-HLFE
16 Interest in a jointly controlled entity 16 HEEZEFLERER
Group AR
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DA ¥ T oc 2y B L)
Share of net assets 21,395 26,882 JE A R A
Amount due from a F [a] # 1f) A 3E
jointly controlled entity 141,136 141,136 KK
162,531 168,018
Less: provision (17,245) (17,245) % BEAR
145,286 150,773
Investment at cost ®E o A MHE
Unlisted shares 23,827 23,827 I by
(a) Interestin a jointly controlled entity represents the Group’s 50% (a) e [r] 42 il £ SEHE 4 T 45 A= S S 2
interest in Wuhu Baoda Electric-Power Development Company W) AR 78 0 BB AT PR A W] 22 5001
Limited, a corporation which is registered and operating in Wuhu, a0 B2 ) L — TR I A A
China, which in turn has a 50% interest in a power plant in Wuhu, R #eg 2 AR > M HEA — HOLR
China. 2 A W 2 5% Rk 2 50% M A5 e
(b) Extracts of financial information of the jointly controlled entity (b) &% [ 42 il 4 3 2 SV 5 R Bk A
are set out as follows: o
Unaudited Unaudited
RICERZ RECHANZ ‘ o
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (LA 5 O 4 5 Ar)
Operating results REEE
Turnover 97,672 88,992 S
Loss attributable to shareholders (7,819) (912) I SR A5 N 1
Financial position B 3 AR R
Fixed assets 256,879 277,138 I S
Current assets 68,796 59,793 L By ¥
Current liabilities (607) (890) B A
Shareholders’ loans (282,278) (282,278) B £
Shareholders’ funds 42,790 53,763 e TR
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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17 RABHZRE

17 Investments in equity securities

Group Company
rEE VAN
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 (LA ¥ % o0 & B8 40)
Non-trading securities, FHEHS
at fair value E QN a1
Listed in Hong Kong - 5,318 - - FELW
Unlisted 16,847 6,465 6,465 6,465 I bkl
16,847 11,783 6,465 6,465
18 Properties held for sale 18 FHEWE

At 31 December 2002, the carrying amount of properties held for sale
of the Group that are carried at net realisable value amounted to

HK$122,647,000 (2001: HK$452,733,000).

19 Properties under development

At 31 December 2002, the carrying amount of properties under
development of the Group that are carried at cost and net realisable
value amounted to HK$457,833,000 (2001: HK$471,153,000) and
HK$57,315,000 (2001: HK$87,615,000) respectively.

For the current year, payment for lands of which formal land use right
certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group is excluded as part
of properties under development and is presented as debtors, deposits
and prepayment. This change is made for better presentation of the
operating assets of the Group and the comparative figures have been

restated accordingly.

20 Inventories

At 31 December 2002, the carrying amount of inventories that are

carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$184,000 (2001: Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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19

20

MoEE-E+A=Z+—H > AEH
Pial S EAR 2 R EmE KR
B £ #k 122,647,000 (T — 4 ¢

i W 452,733,00000) °

BRDPY=E

MoFFEDEL A= —H > REE
DL BAS B R 58 350 1 5 i 2 8 R b i 2
Z MR T (B 4 A & Wk W 457,833,0007T
(ZFFE—4F - % 471,153,0000T)
B s % 57,315,00000 (. FF —4F ik
% 87,615,0007C) ©

FAARSERE A AR B 1 R B IE (1
AR E 2 L BT SO 2 3 IR
AR - FUAE R BEBORER - 1%
& N EAT R R o S oH) REE (L 2
GUASEM 2 BB EE - I RS IR
A EE 5 -

7&
WoFEFAEFF A=+ —H > A
B E 51 R 2 f £ B T8 7% HE 7 184,000
T(ZRE M ) o

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
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21 Debtors, deposits and prepayments 21 BWERA - RERFBANRIE

Payment for lands of which formal land use right certificates have not
yet been obtained by the Group in aggregate amounts of
HK$120,171,000 which was included in properties under development
as at 31 December 2001 are reclassified as debtors, deposits and

prepayment (Note 19).

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors and

its ageing analysis is as follows:

7% S )k 0 A A E X A b 0l R E R
M T SO 2 R AR A 2 W 120,171,000
T EE-E+ A=+ RS
JE S o MM ERIE O R 5 VR M AROR K
¥4 R AT OE (K sE19) -

JRE WA HR  ~ H2 TEASH T AR A A A
B o MR HIREE AT

Group Company
REE AT
(In HK$’000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 (DA s W F o0 F B A7)
Within 3 months 690 9,158 - - =MAMUR
3 months to 6 months 485 279 - - =& NMHA
Over 6 months 17 - - - NEA L E

1,192 9,437 - -

Trade debtors represent considerations in respect of sold properties,

rental receivables and receivables from sales of goods.

Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreements.
Rental receivables are billed in advance and are payable by tenants upon
receipts of billings. For sales of goods, the Group granted credit terms

to each customer ranging from 60 to 120 days.

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF

R B MR R B & W 3 2 AU - B
W AL B B 8 B B 2 BB OERIE -

Ol U B i B ek 2 Rk
BB 7 ST o BN 4 Y T e R IR » A
T AR B IR AT o B A
AEEMEG THMEF H60H £120H K%
i R R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EZ-_HF+ A=+ —HILFE
22 Creditors and accruals 22 ENERRRESRE
Included in creditors and accruals are trade creditors and its ageing JRE AR B 3 e TR i e T o £, 4 B AT B ) R
analysis is as follows: o HIRE 2T -
Group Company
AW *0
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 (LA % F o0 &y BT
Within 3 months 62,046 108,953 - - EX (DR
3 months to 12 months 88,944 5,285 - - =2+ -MA

150,990 114,238 - -

23 Bank and other borrowings WBETREMER

Group A 4R H

Bank loans and

overdrafts Other loans Total

RITERREX Hitt R k)
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 (L T 50 2 B )
Secured 368,123 564,641 9,000 101,478 377,123 666,119 1 HE
Unsecured 10,000 8,265 - - 10,000 8,265 4HE HE 7

378,123 572,906 9,000 101,478 387,123 674,384

Current portion of SRAT B H A B K
bank and other Z— AR R
borrowings  (214,014) (423,673)  (9,000) (65,600) (223,014) (489,273)
164,109 149,233 - 35878 164,109 185,111
Company A2 )

Bank loans and

overdrafts Other loans Total

RITERREX Hith & ok
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 (L% e T o0 2 B0
Secured - 101,044 - - - 101,044 1 4% 7
Unsecured 10,000 8,265 - - 10,000 8,265 4 1% 4

10,000 109,309 - - 10,000 109,309
Current portion of SRAT B H A £ 5K

bank and other v —4E Tk HE K B AT

borrowings (10,000) (109,309) - (10,000) (109,309)

ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED 1 1 1
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23 RITREMER (F)

23 Bank and other borrowings (continued)

112

At 31 December 2002, the bank loans, overdrafts and other loans were

repayable as follows:

N S ERE Ry T
B R SR

Group AR
Bank loans and
overdrafts Other loans Total
RITERREX Hith &% k]
(In HK$ 000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 (DA ¥ % o0 & B8 40)
Within one year 214,014 423,673 9,000 65,600 223,014 489,273 —4ERA
In the second year 42,009 149,233 - 35878 42,009 185,111 B
In the third to =
fifth year 122,100 - - - 122,100 - 5 AR
378,123 572,906 9,000 101,478 387,123 674,384
Company N/ |
Bank loans and
overdrafts Other loans Total
RITERREX Hitt &% k]
(In HK$ °000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 (DA ¥ T o0 J B A7)
Within one year 10,000 109,309 - - 10,000 109,309 —ERR
In the second year - - - - - - 9 AR
In the third to i )
fifth year - - - - - - %A

10,000 109,309

10,000 109,309

The bank loans, overdrafts and other loans were secured by certain

completed properties held for sale and under development with carrying
values of HK$604,743,000 (2001: HK$752,244,000) and bank balances
of HK$121,617,000 (2001: HK$44,077,000). In 2001, the shareholders

of the ultimate holding company also issued letters of undertaking to

secure a bank loan of HK$150,000,000 granted to the Company, of
which HK$100,000,000 was utilised as at 31 December 2001. The related

bank loan was fully repaid in 2002.

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF

SRAT R~ B S S HAR 5K TS by B T
604,743,000 (—FF — 4 ¢ i
5 752,244,00070) Z & THREHE BT ML
Yy 3 K 8% T vh ) 3 LA B SR AT AR R
121,617,0007C (—FF—4F : ##44,077,000
JC) A S KA o R TR F — R AR
N R AREE SRR - DA PR A
A M 2 SR AT B 3 ¥ 150,000,0000C >
% 5 100,000,0007C B i —FE — 4+
A=Z+—HEA o MR RN %
FOERHOER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EZ-_HF+ A=+ —HILFE
24 Share capital 24 AR
Authorised
SEERA
2002 2001
No. of No. of
shares HK$'000 shares  HK$’000
BHEE BYETT RHEE B¥TC
Ordinary shares of A 1 THI (B % ¥ 10110
HK10 cents each 2 5 M
At 1 January 2,200,000,000 220,000 2,200,000,000 220,000 w—H—H
Increase in authorised share capital 7,800,000,000 780,000 - - % R A Z 8
At 31 December 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 2,200,000,000 220,000 wt+t-H=+—H

Issued and fully paid

ERTRAR
2002 2001
No. of No. of
shares HK$'000 shares  HK$’000
BROBE B¥TT RHEEHA BETT
At1January 1,667,935,487 166,794 1,667,935,487 166,794 w—HA—H
Issue of shares 1,168,253,457 116,825 - - AT
At31 December LB618894 283619 1667935487 166,79 rt=A=+—H
(a) By an ordinary resolution passed at a special general meeting of () WIE-ZZHFREA=ZHALNA
the Company on 3 May 2002, the authorised share capital of i PR R R R 2 — T
the Company was increased from HK$220,000,000 to B2 A%\ A B8 EE7,800,000,000/8
HK$1,000,000,000 by the creation of 7,800,000,000 new shares of A TR R Lol TR > MR
HK10 cents each. JBe A% H s W 220,000,000 7T 1 55 i

1,000,000,0007C °

(b) On 28 May 2002, the issued share capital of the Company was (b) M_FEZFETH ANA AL
increased by the allotment and issue of 833,967,743 new shares A 4% B B Rk R 424 T B A% B
(“Rights Shares”) at a price of HK42 cents per share. The Rights 17833,967,743JB 7 11 (T 6 1B B ) )44
Shares were issued by way of rights issue on the basis of one Rights INE AT RA o RN R TR Tt —

Share for every two existing shares held by the shareholders. These ZHEHE > DRy S T IRy
shares rank pari passu with the existing shares. 1M 45 A IR I 3 BB A 0 55 ) 4%
FLUR DA
ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION UMITED.  q 43
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24 Share capital (continued)

25

(¢) Inaddition, 334,285,714 ordinary shares of HK42 cents per share
were issued on 28 May 2002 as consideration for the acquisition
of a subsidiary. These shares rank pari passu with the existing

shares.

Employee share option scheme

On 10 January 2000, the shareholders approved a share option scheme
under which the directors may, at their discretion, invite any full-time
employees or executive directors of any members of the Group to take
up options at HK$1 per option to subscribe for shares of HK10 cents
each in the issued share capital of the Company at any time during the
ten years from the date of approval. The subscription price will be
determined by the board of directors of the Company and will not be
less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) for the five trading days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is granted or the nominal value of the Company’s
share, whichever is the higher. The maximum number of shares in which
options can be granted may not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the
Company, excluding any shares issued on the exercise of options, from
time to time. No options were offered to any full-time employees or
executive directors of any members of the Group under the share option

scheme since its adoption.

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF

Bt 7% R & MR

WE BT = b —H L

24

25

A (&)

(c) ULAh > 334,285,714 55 BEAEAE W5 W42
iz et —FF AL
JNH AT 5 A Sy Wi — ] B 4 )
ZACAE o MR B BB R = A
GEZ IR

BERKRESE

W EERE-A+H > BRI
AR RE R B o ROt o AT R
S AT AT B 28 A 2 AT AT A A B s
AT HE SR A AR O HE S ) R E B
A PR AT ] I ] R A 2 ] A i T (E
W0l B BAT Iy - 15 0 IR b 2 AR
BAEN T - B ESE AL R ES
Ja i 5 Sl AN D B AT W R 2
HiI AR 38 by B AR 23 ®) B A7 i A i g 5C
Zy AT BRA R (TBEEZ T )) 2~ 4 5 i 4
B0% AL R LAy 2 THIAE (AR 5 J ) o
SIS JBCHE B 22 WA T 2 e M H A T
AN F A TR OB AT AR (TR AT {1 i hE
M BEAT Z ey BRAM) 2 10% o B &% Ft# 4
ROAR o AR R R B o AT A
JBCHE T A B2 AT AT i B 28 7] 2 AT AT 4
fE B s MATE S -
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26 Reserves 26 f#fE
Group N Y
Investment
properties Capital
Share revaluation ~ Goodwill redemption  Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RENE EXEE
(InHKS000) ROEE EfifE HERE i EXBE ZRES 5% (DAt W T ¢ 2 B )
At January 2002 1898780 19575 (126694) 196 M5 (TA063) 1033968 BoEEHE—H—H
Issue of shares 373841 - - - - - s AT WAy
Share issue expenses (2,060) - - - - - (2,060) g Oi]
Tmpairment of goodwll - - 106,694 - - - 106694 PR 3 (E
Adjustment to goodwill - - 20,000 - - - 20,000 T 2
Deficit on revaluation of w"EWE
investment properties - (19,575) - - - - (19575) RN 3

Exchange differences - - - - (67) - (67) [ o7, 2% %A
Loss for the year - - - - - (67009)  (267019) N 1R
At31 December2002 2270361 - - 19 2678 (1007,633) 1,265,782 R-EE-_F+=-A=+-—H
Representing; PLR 2 v AL
Company and subsidiaries 2,270,361 - - 196 2097 (305980) L6714 A0 ] S L )8 2 T
Associated companies - - - - - (200538)  (200,538) T 45 4\ )
Jointly controlled entity - - - - 281 (1,135) (854) L TR P A 2

2,270,561 - - 19 2678 (1,007,653) 1,265,782
At 1 January 2001 1,898,780 - (126694) 19 2800 (343981) 1431101 MR_EE—-HF—H—H
Surplus on revaluation of wEYE

investment properties - 19575 - - - - 19,575 il 2 B

Exchange differences - - - - (55) - (55) [ 58, 2% %A
Loss for the year - - - - S (396653 (396653) 44
At31 December 2001 1,898,780 19,575 (126,694) 19 1745 (740,634) 1,053,968 W _EFzE -+ _H=+—H
Representing; PLR 2 mHE AL
Company and subsidiaries ~ 1,898,780 19575 (126,694) 196 2465 (566,380) 1227942 AN ] B LW B R
Associated companies - - - - - (17709 (177,029 W A Al
Jointly controlled entity - - - - 20 2775 305 It 7] 42 1l 4 2

1,898,780 19,575 (126,694) 196 1745 (740,634) 1,033,968

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
BHEEERLLTF
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 WE-XEX-"F+-_A=Z+—-HLFE
26 Reserves (continued) 26 f##& (&)
Company A )
Capital
Share  redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BEEX
(In HK$'000) B EE fie REBR £ (LA W T T 2% B840
At 1 January 2001 1,898,780 196 (445485) 1,453,491 WoEE—4E—H—H
Loss for the year - - (328,766)  (328,766) AN 1R
At 1 January 2002 1,898,780 196 (774251) 1,124,725 o EE T4 —H—H
Issue of shares 373,841 - - 373,841 AT IR AR
Share issue expenses (2,060) - - (2,060) &0y 8 17
Loss for the year = - (155802)  (155,802) 4 A i 4R
At 31 December 2002 2,270,561 196 (930,053) 1,340,704 R-ZZBE-F+=-H=+—H
At 31 December 2002 and 2001, the Company had no distributable MEFF_HER_FF-F+ A=+
reserves. — H o A2 A T A UR A -
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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27T GEBRERERHMFE

27 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash inflow (a) BB EHEKSELEZHER
generated from operations ANFHHIESE
(In HKS$ "000) 2002 2001 (LA B T 0 2% B L)
Operating loss (82,465) (301,734) R 1R
Interest income (3,261) (2,456) B e A
Dividend income (385) (1,059) B Bl A
Depreciation 7,917 2,868 I
Realisation of negative goodwill (6,378) - N R
Amortisation of goodwill 5,390 - T 2 g
Amortisation of development costs 4,576 - BH B A A 1 5
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries 730 (868) B A R 2 SR (M as)
Realised gain on sales of HEFREEES
non-trading securities (422) (12,059) Z B8 Bl
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (1,136) 983 HeEEEEEZ (k) EiE
Provision for properties held for sale MIE I EWE LERTYE
and properties under development 29,390 235,682 1 185 45
Provision for investments AR I A 7 I
in equity securities - 7,475 F 18
Provision for fixed assets 22,337 - W R AE A
Provision for inventories 3,731 - WA B R
Provision for doubtful debts 3,327 236 WS AR H A
Operating loss before working BEEEHHARE
capital changes (16,649) (70,932) | 2Ei!
Decrease in investments B A 7 5
in equity securities 705 4,106 2D
Decrease in amount due from JRE Wi R 2 =) kIR
a related company 82,381 - Z W
Decrease/(increase) in properties fr i B E K
held for sale and properties under iR ES
development 274,357 (13,842) Z Wy (B
Increase in inventories (760) - 17 & 8
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, JRE i B K~ % 4 I TR A 3K IE
deposits and prepayments (215,880) 197,757 Z (M) W
(Decrease)/increase in amount JRE A o ¢ 72 i 2 W) 3KCIA
due to ultimate holding company (50,000) 50,000 Z G/ Hm
Increase in creditors and accruals 63,072 50,845 JE ASH B 3 M M w1 B TE 2 1
Decrease in retention money (1,927) (12,371) e R R
Net cash inflow generated from REEELEZHERA
operations 135,299 205,563 %

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
LT _FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 WE-XEX-"F+-_A=Z+—-HLFE

27 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 27 4R EHRE XK =T (&)

(continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries b) W B 2 H
q
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (L3t B T 0 2 B )
Net assets acquired Wi Wl 2 1A E
Fixed assets 37,590 - i &
Intangible assets 4,411 - MY & E
Investments in equity securities 10,382 - Bk AE S
Inventories 3,155 - ety
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 14,750 - JE M BR R - < e A AKOH
Bank balances and cash 15,517 - SRAT R K Bl
Creditors and accruals (20,597) - JE AF B R % B RTIR IE
Bank and other borrowings (2,827) - SRAT K H A B 3K
Minority interests 43,679 - D B SR AR
106,060 -
Goodwill 111,253 - i
217,313 -
Satisfied by A
Allotment of shares 140,400 - Be 5% 1B AR
Cash consideration 25,591 - el
Interest in an associated company W S AT — ) g A D
held prior to acquisition 8,122 - il 2 HE i
Others (Note 30 (f)) 43,200 - HoAty (B 5 30(6)
217,313 -
The major subsidiaries acquired during the year contributed R W B 2 R e R T A
HK$9,043,000 (2001: Nil) to the Group’s net operating cash B4 Ui ) i A Uk 109,043,0000C (—F
outflows, paid HK$415,000 (2001: Nil) in respect of the investing T—AF - M) o Nk 1% S AU
activities and contributed HK$10,009,000 (2001: Nil) for financing W 415,00070 (. F—4F ) K
activities. % B0 ) A8 A M 510,009,0000T (-
TR ) o
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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27 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 27 A B &R ERK T (8)
(continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) WA Ji B ) A W (48

Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition of

e e O JaS A D E A 2 B4 AL TR

subsidiaries: Iy
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (LA is W T o0 & B8 47)
Cash consideration (25,591) - B4Rl
Bank balances and cash acquired 15,517 - WA Z SRAT 4 iR B
Net cash outflow in respect of s J B Je 2 R E AR
the acquisition of subsidiaries 10,074 - Z B A
(c) Sale of subsidiaries (c) 8 MW E 2
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (LA B T 0 2% B L)
Net assets disposed of o E
Property held for sale 53,938 - G ES
Property under development - 10,909 BIR P YE
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 1,374 164 JE S BR R~ B B TE A A
Creditors and accruals (1,666) (116) JE A B K % JE ST IR IE
Minority interests (9,716) - D B RORE £R
43,930 10,957
(Loss)/gain on disposal (730) 868 HEFRE 2 (B8 ik i
43,200 11,825
Satisfied by A7 A
Cash received - 11,825 B4 A
Others (Note 30 (f)) 43,200 - HoAth (B 5 30(6)
43,200 11,825

The cash flows contributed and utilised by the subsidiaries

disposed of during the two years were not significant to the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
LT _FEFR

MAE A - A 2 B e 2w S A
AL A KB M ER Z B E
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 WE-XEX-"F+-_A=Z+—-HLFE

27 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 27 4B ESHRE XK (&)

(continued)
(d) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (d) 4N ks B i
Share  Bankand
capital and other Convertible  Minority
premium borrowings bonds interests Total
BRERk  HTK C: L2 |
(In HK$'000) BRORE H4EXR REF RRES A (LA s T T B B 40)
At 1 January 2001 2065574 636,176 66000 185422 2,973,172 BoEE—4E—H—H
Net cash inflows/(outflows) g B ERA (FiH)
from financing - 8,899 - (8,621) 278 o)
Share of loss - - - (7074)  (7,074) T A s 1
Share of reserves - - - 1,037 1,037 BT A R A
At 1January 2002 2,065,574 665,075 66,000 170,764 2,967,413 W oEEAHE—H—H
Net cash inflows/(outflows) Mg 2B AeRA S )
from financing 348206 (280,779)  (66,000) 103,707 105,134 e ]
Acquisition of subsidiaries 140,400 2,827 - (83679) 99,548 Wz JE B 2w
Sale of subsidiaries - - - (9716)  (9,716) HERE T /AN
Share of loss - - - (10,782)  (10,782) BT A6 5 18
Share of reserves - - - (1,603)  (1,603) T A 5 5
At 31 December 2002 2,554,180 387,123 - 208,691 3,149,994 W _EE _H+_HA=+—H
120 J\QS%NéEU%Y IZCEOFgO%AHON LIMITED ANN:U%L %E?Fg Zﬁooié
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_XE-_FT+_A=1T—HILFE

28 Contingent liabilities 28 HAREE
At 31 December 2002, the Company issued guarantees to the extent of ATERECHEF A=+ —H ALH
HK$271,378,000 (2001: HK$393,346,000). HK$202,791,000 (2001: FT A 2 98 PR A 36 5 271,378,00000 (-
HK$382,546,000) was utilised in respect of bank and other borrowings T —AF k% 393,346,00000) > H gk
granted to its subsidiaries and HK$1,470,000 (2001: Nil) was utilised BT HE A w2 R AT K H A SR E B
in respect of the lease of fixed assets taken up by a subsidiary. ¥ 202,791,0000C (—FF — 4 ¢ &

5 382,546,0007C) M ik % 1,470,0007C (— &
T—4F ) A — Mg A 7 2 E e

HEME -
Management anticipates that no material liabilities will arise from the EHBHEA - LR W EDRE T E
above bank and other guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of A 2 GRAT B FCABIE R S 2 4R T A 2k
business. RO NS =R
29 Commitments 29 A E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARKIYE
Group PN
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (DA ¥ T o0 2% B 07
Contracted but not provided for [ F R E N ]
— Investment in equity securities 9,423 - — G A 5
— Purchase of property, — WY - MR
plant and equipment 32,329 - V&4
41,752 -
The Company did not have any commitments at 31 December BoEETAETFA=Zt—H A
2002. o ) 3l AT o] AR 3 o
ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
EE Y Ee s mrsmamaa 1271
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EEZ-_HF+_A=Z+—HILFE
29 Commitments (continued) 29 #iE (&)
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) & Hl & &
At 31 December 2002, the Group had future aggregate minimum MREFFZHEFZA=+—H &
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: A% T AR 98 AN T R 6 AL T 2R

RASIA 2 B ARA B AT I T

Group A4
Land and buildings Others Total
tHREF Bt ag
(In HK$'000) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 (VA W T o0 2 B840
Not later than BN
one year 6204 4065 192 o639 4065
Later than one FoEBIENRN
year and not
later than
five years 1,013 1,753 106 - 1,119 1,753
7,217 5818 298 - 7,515 5818
The Company did not have any commitments at 31 December MREZFFZFEFZA=+—H &
2002. 24 T S AT AT R
VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE_EZ-_HF+ A=+ —HILFE
29 Commitments (continued) 29 #&iE (&)

(c) Future minimum rental payments receivable (c) AR 2 o5 I R W L 48 3K TR
At 31 December 2002, the Group had future minimum rental W oEREF+ A=+ —H A
payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in respect of land S5 F AR IR A B b e M TR 22 AN AT
and buildings as follows: SHAH AT 2 R Ak I A8 s L 48 K JH

o
Group NSy
(In HK$°000) 2002 2001 (LA W T o0 2 B0
Not later than one year 12,085 15,809 ®—FN
Later than one year and HOEEILEN
not later than five years 9,632 20,873
Over five years - 215 T FEE
21,717 36,897

The Group’s operating leases are for terms ranging from one to KW KEHEMRE—FEER
six years. HERE -
The Company did not have any commitments at 31 December MWEZEEZZAFEF+H=+—H K
2002. 23w Sl AT fo] R A

ANNUAL REPORT 2002 VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

30 Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

(a)

Billion Property Limited (“Billion”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong
Limited (“CTSH”) entered into an agreement on 19 August 1997
and a supplemental agreement on 10 September 1997 (collectively
known as “1997 Tycoon Place Agreements”), pursuant to which
Billion acquired from CTSH a 90% interest in Ideal Investment
Holdings Limited (“Ideal”) and the remaining 10% interest in Ideal
is owned by CTSH. Ideal had a one-third interest in the
development project known as Tycoon Place at Wong Yue Tang,
Tai Po (“Tycoon Place”). According to the 1997 Tycoon Place
Agreements, CTSH undertook to finance and bear all costs
attributable to Ideal in connection with the completion of Tycoon
Place and if any disposal proceeds of Tycoon Place attributable to
Ideal were used to discharge any liabilities of those companies
which hold Tycoon Place, CTSH would pay to Billion an amount
equivalent to 90% of such disposal proceeds to which Ideal would

be entitled.

On 4 June 1999, Billion entered into a conditional agreement (the
“1999 Tycoon Place Agreement”) with CTSH pursuant to which
Billion acquired from CTSH of its 10% remaining equity interest
in Ideal and the related loan outstanding and owing by Ideal to
CTSH. Upon completion of the 1999 Tycoon Place Agreement,

Ideal had become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Billion.

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
B EBEAERLZF

Bt 7% R & MR

BE-ZZ-_F+-A=+—HILFEE

30 FHEALTRS
4 AR BT BN BT S 2 % 5
W

(a)

AN ) 2 2 G Y& 2 W Billion Property
Limited ([ Billion | ) B 7 5 e (45 1)
AR A (THRER ) 7R — Ltk
FENAA TR L > R — T
JU-EFE LA+ B RT S T T ek (X
M ILLERER T D) -
$E I > Billion Al ik £ [ iy J Lt
Ideal Investment Holdings Limited
(I'deall ) #EH 2 90%HE %2 > 1M Ideal
Bk N 2 109 45 B oP bk 4 AT
Ideal A1 o2 % 3l 5 0 i 2 R 58 K
TEREH(TRERT) Z2=202
—HEzi o M- NEBEX T
ko PR AR R R Rk o8 R BER T
IH H PR S MR BT AT Tdeal B 45
A o i AE A deallE 1 3 H 6 R
SCR R A5 2 SROE B R % 5
FAEREXTZARZAR > Al
Jife 4 18 78 18] Billion 52 {5 AH 4 1% Ideal B
i i 85 P A5 3K 2 90%.2 B o

A —ULLER A E > Billion
o it S [ AT S — JEA R e (T —
JUUVLBZER Nlpak)) > #81L > Billion
16] o iR 42 P 45 18 FC 2 Tdeal W) 685 2 10%
B A HE 26 LA B Tdeal K A5 H i 4E
HMAREEZARER - RE—I
TUILBEER FHhikfE > 1deal K 2y Billion
ZEBEMEAT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

30 Related party transactions (continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2002, a principal sum of approximately
HK$10.9 million (2001: HK$103.6 million) was due and owing
by CTSH to Billion pursuant to the 1997 Tycoon Place Agreements.

On 28 September 2001, the Company received a letter of offer of
shareholder’s loan facility of up to HK$25,000,000 (“Ist
Shareholder’s Loan”) from Vision Century Limited (“VCL”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Such shareholder’s
loan was for the general working capital of the Company. With an
interest rate of 1% per annum over Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR?”), the shareholder’s loan has no fixed terms of

repayment.

On 6 November 2001, the Company received a further letter of
offer of shareholder’s loan facility of up to a further HK$25,000,000
(“2nd Shareholder’s Loan”) from VCL subject to the same terms

as stipulated in the 1st Shareholder’s Loan.

Interest expense of HK$535,000 (2001: HK$312,000) in respect
of the shareholder’s loans as mentioned above was payable to VCL
by the Company during the year. The 1st Shareholder’s Loan and
2nd Shareholder’s Loan were repaid on 17 May 2002.

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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30 FAEALXRZ (&)

(b)

WIE— L RE R T - R
FETAHEFTAZ+—H > FikE
] X A Billion#Y # ¥ 10,900,0007C (=
TR —AF ¢ # ¥ 103,600,00070) Z A
SO P MEE -

ATERE—HEILA T ANH - AR
) 2 AR N ) e #HE % #] Vision
Century Limited ([ VCL]) — 1 & B Ik
B Kl U U 25,000,0000T (5
—THBRER]) 2B RMG  ZE
JBe TR R A S AR R 2 — R
B o IO B AR R B S v SR
frA 247 B (THIBOR)) Jn & » H
S 06 [E] 2 K o

R FE—F T —HRXH » AAHA
BHEVCLY) — 1A B 1 OB 3R
7 %5 125,000,000 (55 — JH i 3 &
) ZBELRM o MERRERZ
AR R L5 — TR R B KT W 2 R
HE o
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30 Related party transactions (continued) 30 BEEEALTXRZ (&)
(c) On 8 October 2001, Vision Century Real Estate Development () WMIZEE—FTHANH > KAFA
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(Dalian) Co. Ltd (formerly known as Dalian Wanguo Amenity
Centre Company Limited) (“VC Dalian”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a project supervision
agreement (the “PS Agreement”) with JTC International
Consultants (Suzhou) Co. Ltd (“JTCI (Suzhou)”) whereby JTCI
(Suzhou) agreed to provide certain project supervision and
consultancy services relating to a development project of a
property located at Xinglin Street, Zhongshan District, Dalian,
Liaoning Province, China (the “Dalian Project”) during a 36-
month period, for a consultancy fee of RMB1,900,000
(approximately HK$1,792,000). If the actual supervision period
is longer than 36 months, JTCI (Suzhou) will receive an additional
consultancy fee for any additional services which will be calculated
on the basis of time spent or may be mutually agreed between the
parties as stipulated under the PS Agreement subject to a

maximum cap of RMB500,000 (approximately HK$472,000).

Besides, VC Dalian and JTCI (Suzhou) also entered into a M&E
Agreement (the “M&E Agreement”) whereby JTCI (Suzhou)
agreed to provide certain mechanical and electrical consultancy
service relating to the Dalian Project for a consultancy fee of
RMB1,100,000 (approximately HK$1,038,000). JTCI (Suzhou) is
indirectly wholly-owned by JTC Corporation, a statutory board
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and wholly-owned by
the government of Singapore. JTC Consultancy Services Holding
Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of JTC Corporation, is
running the operation of JTCI (Suzhou). JTC Corporation,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary Ascendas Land International
Pte Limited, indirectly owns 100% of Riverbook Group Limited,
which in turn holds 50% of VCL, the controlling shareholder of
the Company.
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TR A G I B (BRI o 8RR S 1
3% 18 FL 4 Y W B 2% W) Ascendas Land
International Pte Limited ¥ 3% # A
Riverbook Group Limited 4> #B #f #5 >
Riverbook Group Limited Bl £ fi 4% 73
] 42 B B SR VCL 5091 4

ANNUAL REPORT 2002
ST _FFR



Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

30 Related party transactions (continued)
(d) On 28 March 2002, VCC iCapital Limited (formerly known as

(e)

Ecapital Century Limited) (“VCC iCapital”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement
with CyberCity Holdings Limited (“CCH”) whereby VCC iCapital
conditionally acquired the entire issued share capital of CCI from
CCH at a total consideration of HK$140.4 million (equivalent to
approximately US$18 million) which was satisfied by way of
allotment and issue of 334,285,714 new shares at HK42 cents per
share by the Company.

On 19 April 2002, Vision Business Park (TH) Limited (“Vision
Business”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Beijing Tsinghua Science Park Construction Co. Ltd. (“Tsinghua”),
entered into a conditional joint venture agreement (“JV
Agreement”) for establishment of Vision Huaqing (Beijing)
Development Co., Ltd. (“Vision Huaqing”) as a sino-foreign joint
venture company. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Vision Business
and Tsinghua agreed to establish a joint venture company called
Vision Huagqing in China for a term of 50 years from the date of
the business licence of Vision Huaqing to engage in developing,
managing and operating a business park and other related business
park services mainly for companies engaged in technology related
businesses. The first development project of Vision Huaqing will
be Plot B14 located within Phase 2 of Tsinghua Science Park. Vision
Huaging are 60% and 40% owned by Vision Business and Tsinghua
respectively. The total investment of Vision Huaqing under the
JV Agreement was up to RMB390 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$367 million), including the registered capital
of RMB130 million (equivalent to approximately HK$122

million).
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(d)

(e)

e ks Sy = [ty VAN BRI N/
] 2 A B /A FIVCC iCapital Limited
(Hii % Ecapital Century Limited)
([ VCCiCapital ] ) B2 % 1 ¥ % A BR A
H (TR A )) 3T 57— TE U o %
$E It > VCC iCapitallf) 5 1 45 1B A 1k
PR B CCIA: 30 B 8 A7 AR - it
= TE AR 2 W5 5 140,400,0007C (AR
25 A #718,000,0003 7C) - A A E
7 BB B AT 334,285,714 /1% A5 IR A
A8 s W 42l 2 BT IR B AT -

A FFEZAEMA T ILA AR A
2 2 & If} J& 4~ W] Vision Business Park
(TH) Limited ( [ Vision Business|) Hi
G HERL B RO A PR A (T
) FTAL T A —IHA WA S E AR
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B HER (den) BEBRARAH
(THHEED 2 A EEAF - R
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B DIE R - B RN
I B i Ak At A B o S B RS
TEHEBREFREAMRESZ L
H oo WHEF EMERER NG
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J8 3T FE i 43 B B Vision Business M T
245 T A 60% I 4091 35 JELHT HE TS
TEAEGRIET 2 ARG m e
% By R 8 390,000,0000C (A 55 i 47
# ¥ 367,000,0000C) - 45 5 & A
A R % 130,000,00070 (F0 %5 74 %) #
# 122,000,0007C) °

VISION CENTURY CORPORATION LIMITED
BHEEERLLTF

127



128

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2002

30 Related party transactions (continued)

()

Vision Business and Tsinghua also entered into a land development
agreement for Plot B14 simultaneously with the JV Agreement.
Tsinghua was responsible for the resettlement and site clearance
of Plot B14 by 30 June 2002 or such other dates mutually agreed
by both parties. Vision Business should procure Vision Huaqing
to pay to Tsinghua the land development fee (including the costs
for resettlement, site clearance and levelling and infrastructure
such as connection of basic utilities), incurred by Tsinghua which
was approximately RMB134 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$126 million).

On 19 April 2002, China Land Group Limited (“CLG”) and the
Company entered into an exchange agreement, pursuant to which
the Company agreed (i) to dispose to CLG Group of the 65% equity
interest in Wintime Property Developments Limited (“Wintime”)
owned by Continental Property Limited, which was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, together with the shareholder’s
loan of approximately HK$131 million due and owing by Wintime
to the Group and the rights and benefits relating to certain
residential units for a total consideration of HK$43.2 million; (ii)
to acquire from CLG Group the entire equity interest in Tenways
Investments Limited (“Tenways”), which was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CLG, together with the shareholder’s loan of
approximately HK$44.5 million due and owing by Tenways to CLG
Group for a total consideration of HK$43.2 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2002 BE-ZZ-_F+-A=+t—HILFE
30 Related party transactions (continued) 30 FEEEALRS (&)

(g) On 28 May 2002, the Group had completed the acquisition of the (9 M-EE-HAA-+NAH A%
entire issued share capital of CCI from CCH. The Company has B 5E R R 1 A A CCIE #R B
entered into various connected transactions involving CCI and BEATIRA o AN R BRI 5L JCCl
its subsidiaries as follows: B FCW B s W) 2 Z2 TR BRI AE )
(1) Transactions with Shenzhen Cursor Software Technology Co. (1) B2 17 5 2 IR AR T IR

Ltd. (“SCST”) o] ([R5 =R ) 172

=5

(i) the agency agreement and supplemental agreement () P BHEEEH (F
dated 7 December 2001 and 25 September 2002 I AR A (T3 2
respectively between CyberCity Cursor Media Co. Ltd. ) BRI T A 20820
(“CCCM”) and SCST, of which no fee was charged to H_EE—%+_H+tH
SCST during the year; LR TAENA AL

B #Tr 2 A a3 Sl

Folihek o PRUL > RN
i) R ) VTR SRR R IBUAT:

il FRIH
(i) the technical support agreement dated 13 October 2001 () 2 W R R BRI i
between CCCM and SCST, of which HK$85,000 was B FE—FE+H+=
charged to SCST during the year; and H BT Sr Z Sl S e b
RG> A A 1 PRI T A
S VR i H s 85,0007
K
(iii) the co-operative agreement dated 13 October 2001 (iii) FE1HE PR E Y T =
between CCCM and SCST, of which HK$979,000 was Bk —FFE—F++=
charged to SCST during the year. HEl Lz & 1E S > B

B o A AE R ) I A
5 Wi B ¥ 979,0000C ©
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30 Related party transactions (continued)
(2) Transaction with Shareholders of XiaoDong Global Technology

Co. Ltd. (“XDT”)

XDT, a company incorporated in China and is beneficially
owned as to 33% by Dr. Jiang Xiaoming, Simon, a director
of the Company, and 34% by Mr. Zhai Pu, a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, and 33% by Mr. Yang
Zhaohui, a director of CyberCity Investments (SZ) Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, Dr. Jiang Xiaoming,
Simon, Mr. Zhai Pu and Mr. Yang Zhaohui (together called
“Shareholders of XDT”) are connected persons to the Group.
The transactions with the Shareholders of XDT were entered
into prior to the acquisition which was a loan agreement of
HK$6,417,000 dated 6 December 2001 made amongst
Campusall Company Limited and the Shareholders of XDT.

Interest income of HK$267,000 in respect of the loan as
mentioned above was receivable from the Shareholders of

XDT during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

30 Related party transactions (continued)

3)

Transaction with Shareholders of SZ Nova Science Technology
Development Co. Ltd. (“SZ Nova”)

SZ Nova is owned as to 90% by Dr. Jiang Xiaoming, Simon,
a director of the Company, and 10% by Mr. Chen Shulin, a
director and shareholder of Nova Network Holdings Ltd
(“Nova”). Therefore, Dr. Jiang Xiaoming, Simon, Mr. Chen
Shulin (together called “Shareholders of SZ Nova”) and SZ
Nova are connected persons to the Group. The transaction
with the Shareholders of SZ Nova which was a loan
agreement of HK$4,396,000 dated 11 December 2001 made
amongst Jubilee Success Limited and the Shareholders of SZ

Nova.

Interest income of HK$183,000 in respect of the loan as
mentioned above was receivable from the Shareholders of

SZ Nova during the year.
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Nova is beneficially owned as to 90% by CCI and 8.1% by
Mr. Chen Shulin, a director of Nova and 1.9% by
independent parties not connected with any directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders of the Company or its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associates. Nova
Network Ltd. (“Nova HK”) and Century Nova Cyber
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Nova Cyber”) are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Nova. Details of transactions with

Nova Group are set out as follows:

(1) A guarantee of HK$7,539,000 provided to Nova Cyber
by the Company as at 31 December 2002, of which a

(4) Transactions with Nova and its subsidiaries (“Nova Group”) (4) HH g vE R H [ B 4 Al ([ 8 4E
H]) #1725

T ¥ 1 CCIE 1t 7 9000 4 2
BRAS MR SR (R e ) B A
H 8.19ME 21 S 5 N Lo (BLA
AT E AR Z#HEE - £
Y-S PN e
E YA E PN E g
A 1.9%HE 35 © Nova Network
Ltd. ([R5 & W ]) BLHH 40 m o
AR (WD A BRA A (M
AEE]) B RAEEZ EERE
AT o AN AR [ B R AR 2 5
SREBIE

(i) ANTR-EE AT
A=A H i b i

guarantee fee of HK$108,000 was charged to Nova AUk H57,539,00070 2 &R

Cyber during the year; B > AR F R A P
A2 F P S I T 108,0007T
ZWERE

(i) A loan of HK$4,569,000 provided to Nova by the
Company as at 31 December 2002, of which interest
income of HK$110,000 was charged to Nova during

the year; and

(iii) A corporate guarantee of HK$1,470,000 provided to
Nova HK by the Company as at 31 December 2002, of
which a guarantee fee of HK$9,000 was charged to Nova
HK during the year.
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30 Related party transactions (continued)
(h) On 25 September 2002, Vision Century Investments (Dalian) (h)

Limited (“VCID”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into (i) a conditional agreement with Dalian Guangxia
Development Co. Ltd. (“Guangxia”) pursuant to which VCID
agreed to acquire from Guangxia its 10% interest of the registered
capital in VC Dalian for a consideration of approximately RMB5.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.5 million) (“Guangxia
S&P Agreement”); and (ii) a conditional agreement with Dalian
Bohai Group Co. Ltd. (“Bohai”) pursuant to which VCID agreed
to acquire from Bohai its 2% interest of the registered capital in
VC Dalian for a consideration of RMB3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.8 million) (“Bohai S&P Agreement”). After
the completion of the Guangxia S&P Agreement and the Bohai
S&P Agreement, VC Dalian became a wholly foreign owned
company under the PRC Law and was wholly-owned by the Group.
In connection with the Guangxia S&P Agreement, VC Dalian
entered into the settlement agreement with Guangxia to settle all
the outstanding amount due and owing by VC Dalian to Guangxia

for a consideration of RMB3 million (equivalent to approximately

CiPa3 -1 UNG) % X d-dPN )
HBRA ) (TEUR & K ) 43 7l (1)
B B AR R (TR )
FOL— WA A T o L - BURT
P50 ¥ A 78 () o O BT T B 2
R 10%5E M & A 2 IR > AU
#) 5 N B #5,900,0007T (£ AR 25 i #
#5,500,00070) ([} BT i 38 i el 755 1)
Ko (i) B 78 i v 4 A BR A W) (T
1) 5T 5L — T A W AR R - BRI
JR AT 4% R [ T A S 98 T A
Z B B 200 5 M A 2 SR RE o AR
8 %) 7% N R 3,000,00000 (4 40 25 A
# 15 2,800,00070) (T ¥#h ¥ B 50 1
) o A 5E I B PR ) e
i R W R T AR T R A
e N < /AT A= |
A o R R e N

HK$2.8 million). JRH K B R R RT ST T A AW
o DABITE BUH R N R I A
TR R K > ARME By A\ 3,000,000

JC (FH %5 1 49 i 5 2,800,0000C) ©

31 Ultimate holding company 1 RARERAF
HER ﬁ'bzli’\leEi%‘fﬂx’\jt&T%
JB & L BE B 5 M8 ST 2 48 W] Vision Century

The directors regard Vision Century Limited, a company incorporated

in the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

Limited °
32 Approval of financial statements 2 MBEHEBEB
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on RAFEFEMHHRECHR - FF=F=H 1

12 March 2003. “HHEFRR@ER -
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